
 

Memo 
To: City Commission  

From: Toby Dougherty, City Manager 

Date: 6-27-14 

Re:  July 3, 2014 Work Session   

Please find the attached agenda and supporting documentation for the July 3, 2014 Work 
Session.   
 
Item 2 – 13th Street (Main to Milner) – Design Agreement 
 
Please refer to the attached memorandum from John Braun, Assistant Director of Public Works, 
regarding the design agreement for 13th Street.  Two months ago, the City Commission reviewed 
concept proposals for the reconstruction of 13th and authorized City staff to move forward with the 
design stage.  City staff then solicited proposals for design engineering of the 13th Street reconstruction 
with the recommended proposal coming from Professional Engineering Consultants.   
 
Item 3 – Water Supply Update 
 
City staff will provide the Commission with an update on the status of the Smoky Hill and Big 
Creek Well Fields.   
 
Item 4 – Addendum to the FOP Contract 
 
This item is self-explanatory.  
 
Item 5 – Draining of Pools and Hot Tubs into Alleys 
 
Commissioner Mellick asked that the Commission consider modifying the City’s Code of 
Ordinances to impose a fine for people who drain hot tubs and swimming pools into alleys.  The 
practice by some residents of draining pools and hot tubs onto alleys can cause significant 
damage to the alleys which requires a lot of time, effort and money on behalf of the Service 
Division to correct.  The amended ordinance prepared by the City Attorney prohibits this practice 
and imposes a fine for anyone engaged in such practice.  The fine amount has been left blank.  
On a side note, the City ‘s Code has also been amended to exempt the draining of swimming 
pools and hot tubs from the City’s prohibition on allowing substantial amounts of water to escape 
from private property.   
 
aw 

City of Hays 
Office of the City Manager 



 



CITY OF HAYS 
CITY COMMISSION WORK SESSION 
THURSDAY, JULY 3, 2014 – 6:30 P.M.  

AGENDA 
 
 
 
1. ITEM FOR REVIEW: June 19, 2014 Work Session Notes (PAGE 1) 

DEPARTMENT HEAD RESPONSIBLE: Kim Rupp, Director of Finance 
 

2. ITEM FOR REVIEW: 13th Street (Main to Milner) – Design Agreement (PAGE 7) 
DEPARTMENT HEAD RESPONSIBLE: I.D. Creech, Director of Public Works 
 

3. ITEM FOR REVIEW: Water Supply Update  
DEPARTMENT HEAD RESPONSIBLE: Bernie Kitten, Director of Utilities 
 

4. ITEM FOR REVIEW: Addendum to the FOP Contract (PAGE 65) 
PERSON RESPONSIBLE: Paul Briseno, Assistant City Manager 
 

5. ITEM FOR REVIEW: Draining of Pools and Hot Tubs into Alleys (PAGE 69) 
 PERSON RESPONSIBLE: Commissioner Mellick   

 
6. OTHER ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION 
 
7. EXECUTIVE SESSION (IF REQUIRED)  

 
8. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 

ANY PERSON WITH A DISABILITY NEEDING SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS TO ATTEND THIS MEETING 
SHOULD CONTACT THE CITY MANAGER'S OFFICE 48 HOURS PRIOR TO THE SCHEDULED MEETING TIME.  
EVERY ATTEMPT WILL BE MADE TO ACCOMMODATE ANY REQUESTS FOR ASSISTANCE. 



 



City of Hays 

City Commission 

Work Session Notes 

June 19, 2014 

 

Present:  Henry Schwaller IV, Eber Phelps, Shaun Musil, Ron Mellick, Carol 

Park, Toby Dougherty 

Absent:  Kent Steward 

 

June 5, 2014 Work Session Notes  

There were no corrections or additions to the minutes of the work session 

held on June 5, 2014; the minutes stand approved as presented. 

 

Fireworks for 2014 

From City staff’s perspective, the recent rains have mitigated the potential 

of fire hazard for now. At this time, we don’t know whether conditions will remain 

the same or revert back to dry conditions before the 4th of July holiday. City staff 

held discussion on the matter and feels that the best course of action is to keep 

the prohibition on the sale and use of fireworks in place for the 2014 season. This 

recommendation is based on the experience of the past two years where 

fireworks were not allowed. 

Dan Thyfault and Roy Herman representing Taz Fireworks addressed the 

Commissioners and stated the recent rain has improved the dry conditions and 

would like to see fireworks allowed. 

Commissioner Phelps stated that Ellis County and the City of Ellis and 

Victoria have banned fireworks, and enforcement becomes an issue if we are not 

consistent. He stated fireworks users might misunderstand the reach of the city 

limits and shoot fireworks in Ellis County where they are banned.   

Commissioner Musil stated it isn’t going to get any greener this time of 

year and if we make the decision on dryness, fireworks should be allowed. 

1



Dustin Schlaefli addressed the Commissioners as a citizen and feels 

shooting fireworks is a great way to celebrate our country’s independence.  He 

stated it is apparent that the fire risk is lessened due to the rain and would like to 

see the ban lifted.  

Chairperson Schwaller and Commissioner Mellick were not in favor of 

repealing the ban. 

The Commissioners will not pursue a repeal of the fireworks ban. 

 

Commercial Insurance Renewal – 2014/2015 

The City’s Commercial Insurance Policy with BRIT Insurance will expire 

on July 1, 2014.  Arthur J. Gallagher provides for critical insurance oversight for 

the City as the Insurance Broker.  Requested quotes to various companies by 

Arthur J. Gallagher resulted in a responsive and responsible bid from our current 

carrier in the amount of $191,699.  The outcome of Gallagher’s negotiation 

translates into a decrease in premium for the property and liability package of -

2.5%. Additionally, alternative markets have been recommended for the Crime 

and Equipment Breakdown coverages furthering the premium decrease to 

$189,663 or -3.5% if these options are selected. 

 At the June 26, 2014 Commission meeting, the Commissioners will be 

requested to authorize the City Manager to renew the 2014/2015 Commercial 

Insurance Policy with BRIT Insurance for the coverage presented and accept 

Gallagher’s recommendation to place the Crime and Equipment Breakdown 

coverages separately with Hanover and Hartford, respectively, with an annual 

premium total amount not to exceed $189,663 to be funded from the 

Intergovernmental Insurance and Surety line item. 

 

Water Supply Update 

 Utilities Director Bernie Kitten updated the Commissioners on the effects 

of the recent rains on the Smoky Hill River and Big Creek wells.  

 

 

2



Proposals for Replacement of Water Plant Boiler 

Proposals were received for replacement of the hot water boiler at the 

water treatment plant.  After reviewing proposals with respect to equipment 

efficiency, warranty, control systems, costs, references for similar boilers, and the 

amount of space to be gained through the installation, staff recommends award 

of a contract to Shubert Heating & Air, Inc. in the amount of $37,700 for the 

installation of two HTP Elite boilers and an add alternate of the replacement of 

two existing gate valves.   

The existing boiler dates to 1978 and no longer has available replacement 

parts.  It is near the end of its useful life.   

 At the June 26, 2014 Commission meeting, the Commissioners will be 

requested to approve authorizing the City Manager to award a contract in the 

amount of $37,700 to Shubert Heating & Air. 

 

Hays Regional Airport Terminal Construction Remodel – FAA Grant 

Agreement 

On May 22, 2014, the City Commission approved the bid from Paul- 

Wertenberger Construction for Airport Terminal construction/remodel contingent 

on receipt of a Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) match grant.  The FAA 

Regional Office has authorized a grant for the Airport in the total amount for 

construction and construction engineering of $1,385,185 with FAA paying 

$918,783 and the City share of $466,402. 

Staff recommends accepting the grant offer from FAA with City match as: 

$203,407 from the Airport Improvement Fund; $60,800 from the 2014 Airport 

Operating Budget; and, $202,195 from the Capital Projects Fund, and direct the 

City Manager to enter into agreement with Paul-Wertenberger Construction for 

the base bid plus alternates #1 and #8 totaling $1,220,185. 

At the June 26, 2014 Commission meeting, the Commissioners will be 

requested to authorize the City Manager to enter the agreement with FAA for the 

grant funding of $920,133 of the costs for the construction and construction 

engineering of the terminal improvements with city match of $203,557 from the 

3



Airport Improvement Fund; $60,800 from the 2014 Airport Operating Budget; 

and, $202,195 from the Capital Projects Fund. 

 

Hays Regional Airport Terminal Construction Remodel – Construction 

Engineering Agreement 

The FAA has awarded a grant to renovate the Airport Terminal Building.  

Inspection and observation of the construction needs to be accomplished 

according to FAA guidelines to satisfy the terms of the grant funding and to 

assure proper adherence to the plans and quality construction.  The City’s Airport 

Engineering Consultant, Burns and McDonnell, has presented a scope of 

services and fee to accomplish the required construction oversight and project 

documentation.  The cost for said services is $165,000 and included in the 

funding scenario covered under the FAA Grant for Terminal Renovation Project. 

At the June 26, 2014 Commission meeting the Commissioners will be 

asked to approve the work authorization from Burns and McDonnell in the 

amount of $165,000.   

 

Addendum to the SEIU Local 513 Contract 

The City of Hays and the SEIU Local 513 have an agreement for fiscal 

year 2015 Wages, and Administration of the Pay Plan.  The agreement states the 

City will provide members of the SEIU bargaining unit with a one-time 2% bonus, 

paid bi-weekly beginning with the first payroll in 2015 and ending with the last 

payroll in 2015. The City will continue the current pay ranges. 

Commissioners will be requested to authorize the Mayor, City Manager, 

Directors of Parks, Public Works and Utilities to sign the 2015 Addendum to the 

2013 thru 2015 Union Contract at the June 26, 2014 Commission meeting. 

 

Other Items for Discussion 

 Commissioner Mellick commented that the Fly-In at the Hays Regional 

Airport on Saturday June 7, 2014 was well attended and thanked the group that 

4



put it together with a special thanks to Shelley Bryant, Administrative Assistant 

for Public Works on a job well done. 

 Commissioner Musil would like additional discussion on the sale and use 

of fireworks and requested this item be placed on a future work session. 

 Commissioner Phelps commented that the Chamber Chat is at the Hays 

Regional Airport June 20, 2014 at 9:00 a.m. and the Gallery Walk is tomorrow 

evening June 20th, as well. 

  

 

 The work session was adjourned at 7:17 p.m. 

 

 Submitted by: _______________________________________________ 

     Brenda Kitchen – City Clerk 

 

 

5



 

6



 

 

Commission Work Session Agenda  
Memo  

 
From:   John Braun, Assistant Director of Public Works  
 
Work Session:   July 3, 2014  
 
Subject:  13th Street, Main to Milner – Design Agreement  
 
Person(s) Responsible:  Toby Dougherty, City Manager 
  I.D. Creech, Director of Public Works 
 

Summary 
In May, staff brought forward concepts and alternatives for the reconstruction of 13th 
Street from Main to Milner.  Subsequently the City Commission directed staff to solicit 
proposals for engineering design services.  Proposals were received from four (4) firms 
with the lowest cost proposal coming from Professional Engineering Consultants of 
Wichita in the amount of $95,000.  Staff recommends that the City Commission 
authorize the City Manager enter an agreement with PEC to be funded out of Capital 
Project. 
 

Background  
Since the fall of 2013, staff has been developing a project to reconstruct 13th Street from 
Main to Milner.  At the September 26, 2013 City Commission meeting, $1,500,000 was 
transferred from Financial Policy Projects to a Capital Projects fund to finance the cost of 
engineering and construction to improve 13th Street from Main to Milner.  Subsequently, 
Driggs Design Group (DDG) was hired to develop concept plans and cost estimates.   
 
During the Concept Planning stage, DDG assessed the site, collected data, developed 
concepts, and calculated estimates of cost.  DDG and city staff contacted stakeholders 
along the project, and a public information meeting was held on March 5, 2014 to present 
details of the project and solicit comments.  Subsequently, surveys were mailed to all 
property owners along the corridor, and a presentation was made to the DHDC. 
 
At the May 1, 2014 work session, and again at the May 8, 2014 Regular Meeting of the 
City Commission, Buck Driggs and City Staff presented various alternatives to chose 
from.  Those options included: 

 Base Option –  
Reconstructing just the street and intersections $1,498,208 

 Storm Sewer Improvements $302,198 
 Water Service Upgrades $39,688  
 A – Additional Curb, Sidewalk & Parking  $204,000 
 B – Brick Street from Main to Oak $150,480 
 C – Brick Crosswalks at all intersections $13,500 

7



 

 

 D – Landscape Planters (low/no water vegetation) $21,600 
 E – Monument Sign $10,200 
 F – Upgrade Traffic Signal at 13th and Main $168,000 
 G – Decorative Street Lights $142,200 

 
The City Commission directed staff to solicit an engineering firm to proceed with design 
for the reconstruction of 13th Street from Main to Milner to include the Base Option, 
Storm Sewer Improvements, Water Service Upgrades, and Alternates A, B, C, E, & G.  
The alternates would be designed and bid as add-ons to be considered for construction 
during after construction bids are received.   See attached Excerpts from the Minutes 
of the May 8, 2014 Meeting. 
 

Discussion 
Following City Commission direction, staff solicited proposals from engineering firms 
for the design services.  See attached Request for Proposals  
 
Proposals were received from four firms as follows: 
 

 Professional Engineering Consultants (PEC)  $95,000 
 Cook, Flatt & Strobel (CFS) $98,500 
 Wilson & Company $130,000 
 Driggs Design Group $169,060 

 
See attached response from PEC. 
 
The Scope of Services includes engineering design of the project through bid letting, pre-
construction meetings, and review of contractor submittals.  Inspection of the project is to 
be completed in-house.  Additional technical services during construction, if necessary, 
would be additional work, or done under separate contract.  See attached Engineering 
Service Agreement. 
 
The current design schedule calls for a bid opening in January 2015 with construction 
during the 2015 construction season. 
 

Legal Consideration 
There are no known legal obstacles to proceeding as recommended by City Staff. 

 

Financial Consideration 
The cost estimate for the project plus add-ons specified by the City Commission at the 
May 8th meeting totals a little over $2 million.  In 2013, $1,500,000 was transferred from 
Financial Policy Projects to Capital Projects to help fund this project.  Depending on bid 
prices and the add-ons ultimately chosen, additional funding may be required.  Another 
$342,000 or so will be needed to fund improvements to storm sewer and water services. 
 
The $95,000 cost of Design Engineering is included in the above cost estimates, and 
would be paid out of the Capital Projects fund.  
 
 

8



 

 

Options 
The City Commission has the following options: 

 Authorize the City Manager to enter an agreement with PEC for Engineering 
Services. 

 Do nothing 
 

Recommendation 
Staff recommends the City Commission Authorize the City Manager to enter an 
agreement with PEC for Engineering Services 
 

Action Requested 
Authorize the City Manager to enter an agreement with Professional Engineering 
Consultants in the amount of $95,000 for Engineering Services related to the design of 
the reconstruction of 13th Street from Main to Milner to be funded out of Capital Projects. 
 

Supporting Documentation 
Excerpts from May 8, 2014 City Commission Meeting 
Request for Proposals 
PEC Response to RFP 
Engineering Service Agreement 
 

9



Excerpt from May 8, 2014 City Commission Meeting 

City Manager Toby Dougherty stated he has discussed the process of 

handling funds collected for the project with Finance Director Kim Rupp and we 

have no problem holding and tracking the segregation of the funds brought in, 

but if the intent of the person making the donation is to get a letter for a tax 

deductible donation we wouldn’t provide this for anything less than $100.00. 

Commissioner Mellick asked about a time limit for the fund raising. 

Derek Hadley stated a minimum of 2 years and a maximum of 5 years is 

usually sufficient. 

Eber Phelps moved, Shaun Musil seconded, to approve the general 

concept of expanding/improving the current skate park at Aubel-Bickle Park and 

allowing the Western Kansas Skate Park Committee to solicit donations towards 

expansion/improvements to the skate park with the stipulation that they raise the 

money for the first phase within two years 

Commissioner Mellick wondered if Commissioner Phelps would want to 

put an end date of five years so it is not open ended. 

Eber Phelps amended his motion to include that the entire project be 

completed within a two to five year period; Shaun Musil agreed to amend his 

second. 

Vote:  Ayes: Henry Schwaller IV  

     Eber Phelps 

     Shaun Musil    

     Ron Mellick 

     Kent Steward 

6.  13TH STREET (MAIN TO MILNER):  The 2012 Comprehensive Plan update 

identified 13th Street from Main Street to Milner as an entry corridor to downtown 

that needs improvement.  $1.5 million has been set aside in a capital project fund 

for the reconstruction of these four blocks of 13th Street.  Driggs Design Group 

has developed concept plans and cost estimates; stakeholders along the project 

were contacted; a public information meeting was held; and a presentation made 

to the Downtown Hays Development Corporation (DHDC) Board.  The City 

10



Excerpt from May 8, 2014 City Commission Meeting 

Commission is being asked to consider staff’s recommendation for additional 

funds and authorize solicitation of engineering design services. 

 City Manager Toby Dougherty clarified that we don’t need a final decision 

on amenities for this project tonight, just the approval to go forward with the 

concept. 

 Buck Driggs with Driggs Design Group presented the options along with 

details of his assessment, the results of the survey, and answered questions 

from the Commissioners.  He stated the pavement is reaching the end of its life 

expectancy and is in poor condition. 

At the September 26, 2013 City Commission meeting, $1,500,000 was 

transferred from Financial Policy Projects to a Capital Projects fund to pay the 

cost of engineering and construction of this project.  The most economical cost 

estimate (Base Option) has a cost, including engineering, of $1,498,208.  The 

preliminary cost estimate for Storm Sewer improvements is $302,198.  This 

would need to be funded from the Stormwater Management Fund. The 

preliminary cost estimate to upgrade Water Services is $39,688.  This would 

need to be funded from Water and Sewer Capital Reserve Fund. 

Other amenities or Add Alternates being presented, but currently unfunded 

include: 

• A – Additional Curb, Sidewalk & Parking  $204,000 

• B – Brick Street from Main to Oak $150,480 

• C – Brick Crosswalks at all intersections $13,500 

• D – Landscape Planters (low/no water vegetation) $21,600 

• E – Monument Sign $10,200 

• F – Upgrade Traffic Signal at 13th and Main $168,000 

• G – Decorative Street Lights $142,200 

           The above costs are only preliminary estimates; more specific amounts 

would be developed during the design phase. 

Kent Steward moved, Shaun Musil seconded, to authorize staff to solicit 

an engineering firm to proceed with design for the reconstruction of 13th Street 

11



Excerpt from May 8, 2014 City Commission Meeting 

from Main to Milner to include the Base Option, Storm Sewer Improvements, 

Water Service Upgrades, and Alternate A, B, C, E,  and G. 

Commissioner Phelps clarified this is conceptual and when we see more 

accurate cost estimates we will decide at that time to include the add ons. 

Chairperson Schwaller was concerned with the engineering costs with 

adding alternates that we may or may not pursue.  He also stated he would like 

to wait and implement a cohesive look for downtown rather than focus on four 

blocks of 13th Street.  The price tag for engineering a design for just the lighting is 

an estimated $14,000.  He also wanted to clarify that the project would be paid 

for in cash, and taxes would not increase. 

Vote:  Ayes: Eber Phelps 

     Shaun Musil    

     Ron Mellick 

     Kent Steward 

    No: Henry Schwaller IV 

7.  2014 WATERLINE IMPROVEMENTS (HICKORY AND ASH) – AWARD OF 

BID:  Bids were opened on April 16, 2014 for the replacement of city water mains 

on Hickory and Ash from 27th to 29th Street.  The low bidder for Hickory and Ash 

Streets is Stripe and Seal of Hays in the amount of $233,458.  The contractor 

indicated an October 1, 2014 start date to be completed in 60 working days.   

Shaun Musil moved, Ron Mellick seconded, to authorize the City Manager 

to enter a contract with Stripe and Seal in the amount of $233,458 for waterline 

improvements on Hickory and Ash from 27th Street to 29th Street.  Funding would 

be from Water and Sewer Capital Reserve Fund. 

Vote:  Ayes: Henry Schwaller IV  

     Eber Phelps 

     Shaun Musil    

     Ron Mellick 

     Kent Steward 

8.  2014 WATERLINE IMPROVEMENTS (ELM STREET FROM FORT TO 4TH 

STREET) – AWARD OF BID:  Bids were opened on April 16, 2014 for the 

12



 

 

 

 

City of Hays 

Request for Proposals 

 

 

COH Project 2013-22 

13
th

 Street Improvements – Main to Milner 

Design Engineering Services 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Date of Issue: May 12, 2014 

Proposal Due Date: May 28, 2014 

13



 2 

Table of Contents 

 

1. INTRODUCTION.........................................................................................................................................3 

2. RULES OF PREPARATION.......................................................................................................................3 

3. PROPOSER INQUIRIES.............................................................................................................................3 

4. SUBMISSION OF PROPOSALS ................................................................................................................4 

5. NOTIFICATION OF WITHDRAWL OF PROPOSAL ...........................................................................4 

6. MINIMUM SPECIFICATIONS/SCOPE OF SERVICES ........................................................................4 

7. CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS ............................................................................................................4 

8.  RIGHT OF THE CITY OF HAYS TO REJECT PROPOSALS.............................................................5 

9. EVALUATIONS ...........................................................................................................................................5 

10. NON-LIMITATIONS TO RFP..................................................................................................................  5 

11. PRE-PROPOSAL CONFERENCE.............................................................................................................5 

12. INTERPRETATIONS AND ADDENDA....................................................................................................5 

13. PROJECTED SCHEDULE OF EVENTS ..................................................................................................5 

14. PROPOSAL RESPONSE FORMAT ..........................................................................................................6 

15. CONFIDENTIALITY OF DOCUMENTS .................................................................................................6 

16. LEGAL NOTICE ..........................................................................................................................................6 

EXHIBIT A   (CONCEPT PLAN) ............................................................................................................................._ 

EXHIBIT B  (SCOPE OF SERVICES) ....................................................................................................................._ 

EXHIBIT C   (PROPOSAL SHEET) ........................................................................................................................_ 

EXHIBIT D  (GEOTECHNICAL REPORT) ..........................................................................................................._ 

 

14



 3 

1.  Introduction 
 The City of Hays invites your firm to submit a written proposal to provide Engineering 
Services related to improvements to 13

th
 Street from Main to Milner in Hays, KS. 

The 2012 City of Hays Comprehensive Plan update called for improving gateway 
(corridor) leading to the Chestnut Street District (Downtown Hays).  13

th
 Street from 

Main to Milner has been identified as a gateway to downtown that could use 
improvement.  In addition to being called out in the Comprehensive Plan for aesthetic 
improvement, this stretch of 13

th
 Street also ranked high in the in the priority of streets to 

have pavement improvement based on a low Pavement Condition Index (38) combined 
with traffic volume (7000 vpd) and street classification (arterial). 

Driggs Design Group was hired by the City to perform Concept Phase Services.  The City 
Commission reviewed concepts and on May 8, 2014 defined the scope of the project, and 
directed staff to solicit bids for design services. 

The scope of the project is includes:  The reconstruction of 13
th
 Street from Main Street 

to Milner, to include all pavement, parking lanes, curbing, intersection returns, sidewalk, 
stormwater infrastructure, new water services, brick street from Main to Oak, Brick 
Crosswalks at all intersections, Downtown Chestnut Street District Monument Sign, and 
street lighting upgrades.  Project is further detailed in Exhibit A. 

Currently, 100% of funding is expected to be local, and state/federal funding is not 
anticipated. 

This written Request for Proposal (RFP) states the scope of the City of Hays 
requirements and specifies the general rules for preparing the proposal.  

The proposal should clearly demonstrate how the firm can best satisfy the requirements 
of the City of Hays. The City of Hays shall reserve the right to enter an agreement with 
the firm presenting the proposal which is most advantageous to the City of Hays. 

2.  Rules of Preparation 
The submitted proposals must follow the rules and the format established within this 
RFP.  Adherence to these rules will ensure a fair and objective analysis of all proposals.  
Failure to comply with any portion of this request may result in rejection of a proposal. 

3.  Proposer Inquiries 
The Public Works Department of the City of Hays has prepared this RFP and has 
designated the Assistant Director of Public Works, John Braun, as project manager.  
Please direct questions or comments concerning either the administrative or technical 
requirements of this RFP to: 

 

John Braun, Assistant Director of Public Works 

City of Hays Public Works Department 

1002 Vine Street 

Hays, Kansas 67601 

(785) 628-7350 office 

(785) 628-7352 fax 

johnbraun@ruraltel.net  

 

To ensure a timely response, questions requiring a response should be faxed or e-mailed 
to the Project Manager at the specified number or address above. 

 

15



 4 

No inquiries will be accepted after noon on May 23, 2014.  If necessary, the City will 
issue a revision to the RFP by 8:00 am on May 27, 2014. 

4.  Submission of Proposals 
Please prepare and submit two (2) copies of the proposal.  Completed proposals should 
be clearly marked "13th Street Proposal" and be submitted no later than 3:00 P.M. 
May 28, 2014, to the City Clerk, 1507 Main Street, PO Box 490, Hays, KS  67601. 

Proposals received after the above date and time will be considered late and will not be 
accepted.  Any late proposals will be returned unopened to the firm.   

The City of Hays will not pay costs incurred in the proposal preparation including the 
costs for printing, demonstration, negotiation process, etc.  All costs for the preparation 
of the proposal shall be borne by the proposing firm. 

5.  Notification of Withdrawal of Proposal 
Proposals may be modified or withdrawn by an authorized representative of the firm or 
by formal written notice prior to the final due date and time specified for proposal 
submission.  Submitted proposals will become the property of the City of Hays after the 
proposal submission deadline. 

6.  Minimum Specifications/Scope of Services 
Proposals should address all engineering services necessary to complete the project as 

detailed in Exhibit B – Scope of Services.   

 
Each proposal shall include a draft Agreement for Engineering Services.  The agreement 
should include but not be limited to: definition of project scope, scope of services to be 
provided by the consultant, scope of services to be provided by the City, time schedule, 
and compensation.  For the purpose of evaluating proposals, the Consultant shall 
complete and sign the proposal sheet in Exhibit C.   

7.  Contractual Obligations 
The successful firm will be required to enter an Agreement for Engineering Services with 
the City of Hays in which the firm will undertake certain obligations.  These obligations 
include, but are not limited to, the following: 

Inclusion of Proposal - The proposal submitted in response to this RFP will be 
incorporated as part of the Agreement for Engineering Services. 

Indemnification and Insurance - The successful firm(s) shall indemnify and hold the City 
of Hays and its officers, agents, employees and assigns, harmless from any liability 
imposed for injury whether arising before or after completion of work hereunder, or in 
any manner directly or indirectly caused, occasioned or contributed to, or claimed to be 
caused, occasioned or contributed to, in whole or in part, by reason of any act or 
omission, including strict liability or negligence of firm, or of anyone acting under firm's 
direction or control or on its behalf, in connection with or incident to, or arising out of the 
performance of this contract.  Successful firm shall maintain the following insurance 
requirements during the time of performance of these services and contract 
period.  An insurance certificate must be on file with the City Clerk’s office 
within four weeks of the signing of the contract by both parties. 

a. General Liability Insurance, with a combined single limit of $1,000,000 for each 
occurrence and $1,000,000 in the aggregate 

b. Automobile Liability Insurance, with a combined single limit of $1,000,000 for each 
person and $1,000,000 for each accident 

16



 5 

c. Worker's Compensation insurance in accordance with statutory requirements and 
Employer’s Liability Insurance, with a limit of $500,000 for each occurrence 

d. Professional Liability Insurance, with a limit of $2,000,000 annual aggregate 

The successful firm shall require all of its subcontractors to maintain general aggregate 
insurance with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per accident. 

Costs - All costs are to be stated in exact amounts.  All costs must be detailed specifically 
in the cost summary section of the proposal; no additional charges (e.g. for sales tax, 
container packing, installation, training, out-of-pocket expenses, etc.) will be allowed 
unless so specified in the proposal. 

Selection - The final award is subject to the approval of the Hays City Commission. 

8.  Right of the City of Hays to Reject Proposals 
The City of Hays reserves the right to reject any and all proposals or any part of any 
proposals, to waive minor defects or technicalities, or to solicit new proposals on the 
same project or on a modified project which may include portions of the originally 
proposed project as the City of Hays may deem necessary in its best interest. The City 
also reserves the right to negotiate with any firm, all or part of any proposal that is in the 
best interest of the City. 

9.  Evaluations 
 The committee evaluating the proposals will base the evaluation on the proposal that will 
best serve the City of Hays at the lowest possible cost.  The City does not intend to short 
list or interview.  City reserves the right to request additional information about 
qualifications from any firm during the evaluation period. 

10.  Non-limitations to RFP 
The format of the RFP must be followed and all requested information must be submitted 
as indicated; however, the City of Hays is receptive to any additional suggestions 
pertaining to services development, additional related capabilities, and any alternative 
methods for providing related services.  Any exceptions to the RFP terms and conditions 
must be included in writing in the proposal (Response to Functional Requirement). 

11. Pre-proposal Conference 
 There will be no pre-proposal conference. 

12. Interpretations and addenda 
 No interpretation made to any respondent as to the meaning of the RFP shall be binding 

on the City of Hays unless repeated in writing and distributed as an addendum by the City 
of Hays.  Interpretations and/or clarification shall be requested in writing from the contact 
person listed in Section 3. 

13.  Projected Schedule of Events 
Release of RFP Document  May 12, 2014 

Pre-proposal Conference  none 

Last day to submit proposals  May 28, 2014 
City Commission Work Session  June 19, 2014 

Anticipated Notice to Proceed  June 27, 2014 
Anticipated Construction Bid Opening  January 2015 

17



 6 

 

14.  Proposal Response Format 
In order to facilitate the analysis of responses to this RFP, firms are required to submit 
their proposal in accordance with the instructions outlined in section 4.   

Proposals shall consist of the following: 

• completed proposal sheet  from Exhibit C.  

• Client References - Provide at least three client references for projects similar in 
nature, size or complexity to that described in this RFP.   

• Contract Terms and Conditions - This section is to contain the firm's sample 
agreements for Engineering Services.  This section is intended to form the basis 
for the development of an Engineering Service Agreement to be awarded as a 
result of the RFP.  

• Responses to Functional Requirements (optional) – This would be information 
regarding project approach and unique elements of the proposed project.   Notes 
of explanation or clarification must be included with specific reference to any 
exceptions to the requirements of the RFP or items in question. 

• Standard Hourly Rate Schedule – Listing of current hourly rates and fees, 
overhead, etc. 

 

Expensive bindings, color displays, promotional material, etc., are not necessary or 
desired – above listed attachments clipped to Exhibit C will suffice.  Submit two 
copies of everything. 

15.  Confidentiality of Documents 
All responses to the RFP submitted by firms shall be deemed public documents at the 
time opened by City of Hays.  The RFP is intended to be worded in a manner so as not to 
elicit proprietary information from the firm. If proprietary information is submitted as 
part of the proposal, such information is to be labeled proprietary and be accompanied 
with a request that the information is to be returned by the City of Hays to the submitter.  
Any proposal that is submitted with a blanket statement or limitation that would prohibit 
or limit such public inspection shall be considered non-responsive and shall be rejected. 

16.  Legal Notice 
Required Contractual Provisions 

Unless specifically waived in its request for bids or request for proposals, or 

included as alternate provisions to be bid or proposed, the City of Hays, Kansas, 

shall not award contracts nor let bids to individuals or entities unless the vendor, 

contractor or individual agrees to indemnify and hold the City of Hays, Kansas, 

harmless from any and all losses, damages or expenses of any kind arising out of 

any and all claims, demands, or causes of action initiated against the City of Hays, 

Kansas, by competing entities bidding on the project which is the subject of the 

contract.  

 

Prohibited Contractual Provisions. 

Unless specifically waived in its request for bids or request for proposals, or 

included as alternate provisions to be bid or proposed, the City of Hays, Kansas, 

shall not award contracts nor let bids to individuals or entities which attempt to do 

18



 7 

any of the following or include any of the following in the proposed contract:  

 

1) Any diminishment of the common law or statutory standard of care, limitation of 

liability, or other attempt to reduce responsibility for mistake, error, or negligence 

of any type on the part of the vendor, contractor or individual.  

 

2) Attempts to limit liability for breach of contract or negligent performance to the 

amount of the payment to the contractor by the city.  

 

3) Attempt to claim ownership of intellectual property created during the 

performance of the contract with the city. 

 

4) Arbitration agreements. 

 

5) Provision for damages for breach by owner contrary to common law or statute 

including, but not limited to, any attempt to provide for attorney fees as part of 

recoverable damages.  

 

6) Attempt to designate any forum or venue for resolution of disputes other than 

Ellis County District Court, Kansas. 

 

7) Any other attempted reallocation of risk contrary to common law or statute. 

 

8) Any attempt to eliminate the city's ability to collect consequential, exemplary or 

punitive damages, or any other measure of damages permitted by law, in an action 

against the vendor, contractor or individual for breach of contract.  
 

Prohibited Acts. 

Unless specifically permitted to do so by the request for bids or request for proposals, no 

vendor, contractor or individual submitting proposals or bids to the City of Hays, Kansas, 

shall attempt to insert any of the contractual provisions prohibited by Section 2-577 into 

any contracts or agreements proposed to the City of Hays, Kansas.  

 

Penalty for Violation of Article. 

Any vendor, contractor or individual who, without the express permission of the City 

Manager of the City of Hays, Kansas, proposes to enter into or enters into a contract with 

the City of Hays, Kansas, which omits any of the contract provisions required by Section 

2-576 of this article or contains any of the contract provisions barred by Section 2-577 of 

this article, may be found by the City Manager of the City of Hays, Kansas, to be in 

violation of this article and vendors, contractors or individuals found to be in violation of 

this article may be barred from bidding on future contracts with the City of Hays, Kansas.  

 

Conflict Between Article and Contract 

To the extent any contract entered into by or on behalf of the City of Hays, Kansas omits 

any of the contract provisions required by Section 2-576 of this article, the article will 

prevail and the required contract provisions will be read into the contract. To the extent 

any contract entered into by or on behalf of the City of Hays, Kansas contains any of the 

19



 8 

contract provisions barred by Section 2-577 of this article, the article will prevail and the 

offending provisions shall be null and void and shall be unenforceable as to the City of 

Hays, Kansas.  

 

The City of Hays expects a professional job, done commensurate with the standards and 
practices of the profession/or business. 

All persons awarded and/or entering into purchase orders with the City of Hays shall be 
subject to and required to comply with all applicable City, State and Federal provisions. 

The City of Hays has an affirmative action program.  Any firm will be required to include 
the following statement in any contract with the City of Hays: 

 "Contractor shall not discriminate in the employment of persons engaged in the 
performance of this Agreement on account of race, color, national origin, ancestry, 
religion, sec, marital status, physical handicap, or medical condition, in violation of any 
federal or state law.  Contractor shall comply with all requirements of the City of Hays 
pertaining to affirmative action with regard to employment while this Agreement is in 
effect." 

 

At any time, the City may elect to abandon the project.  At that time, the consultant would be 
compensated for all work previously completed. 

 

Rights to intellectual property developed, utilized, or modified in the performance of services 
shall remain the property of the City of Hays. 

20



 9 

Exhibit A 

 

(insert Concept Plan) 

21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



 10 

Exhibit B 

 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

TO BE PROVIDED BY THE CONSULTANT 

Provide Engineering Services related to the preparation of construction plans and bid 
documents for the proposed reconstruction of 13

th
 Street from Main to Milner (4 city 

blocks) according to the Minimum Design Standards as set forth in the Current City 
of Hays Subdivision Regulations, Development Policy, City of Hays Standard 
Details and Specifications for Public Works Construction Projects, and industry 
standards (KDOT, ASSHTO, MUTCD, etc) where the City standard is not adequate. 
Services should include but not be limited to: 

1) Planning:  

a)  Review Concept Plan selected by City Commission.  See Exhibit A 

b) Review Bike Hays Master plan for inclusion of identified bike routes into the project 

design.  

c)    Project Kick-off Meeting – on-site with City Staff.   

i) Deliverables:  Agenda and Meeting Notes. 

ii) City: provide meeting space, invite pertinent City Staff. 

2) Engineering Design: 

a)   Geotechnical Investigation has already occurred.  Report is included as Exhibit D.  

b) Perform field survey to collect pertinent topographic and engineering data deemed 

necessary to complete the design of the projects.  Such data will include pertinent 

known and identified underground utilities, including vertical elevations that are 

readily located by common surveying methods.  Any property pins readily apparent 

should be included in the survey to validate City/County GIS identified right of way. 

c)   Identify existing rights of way and/or easements based on the City/County GIS Data 

and adjacent plats.  No boundary survey is necessary.  The City does not anticipate 

the need to acquire additional right of way or easements on this project.  Should the 

ultimate design require additional right of way or easements, consultant shall inform 

the City of such need.  Any additional work beyond the identification of the needed 

right of way would be for an additional negotiated fee 

d) Preliminary Design Plans (30%) 

i) Deliverables:  Preliminary cost estimate, one (1) full size plan set, printable 

pdf file, AutoCAD file that includes the base file from the survey, site visit to 

review plans (Field Check with City Staff), compile and distribute field 

check notes. 

ii) City: provide timely (10 working days) review of plans, and attend field 

check. 

e) Utility Review 

i) Prepare utility check plans and distribute to all affected utility companies. 

ii) Coordinate utility relocation requirements – attend one regular monthly 

meeting of the Utility Advisory Committee. 

43



 11 

iii) Follow-up with Utility companies to insure relocation of utilities as 

necessary. 

iv) Special consideration shall be given to working with Midwest Energy on the 

Street Lighting Upgrade component of this project. 

f) Permitting 

i) Prepare and submit applications for any state or federal permit that may be 

required. 

ii) Coordinate with permitting agencies as necessary. 

iii) City will pay permit fees as necessary. 

g) 90% Design Plans 

i) Deliverables:  Updated cost estimate, draft of bid documents and 

specifications, one (1) full size plan set, printable pdf file, AutoCAD file, site 

visit to review plans with City Staff and visit project site, compile and 

distribute 90% Plan review notes. 

ii) City: provide Standard Details and Specifications for Public Works 

Construction Projects for engineer to utilize in preparing bid documents; 

provide timely (10 working days) review of plans and specs; and attend 90% 

Plan Review. 

h) 100% Design Plans and Bid Documents 

i) Deliverables:  Updated cost estimate, Final draft of bid documents and 

specifications, one (1) full size plan set, printable pdf file, AutoCAD file, 

conference call or in-person review with City Staff, compile and distribute 

100% Plan review notes. 

ii) City: provide timely (10 working days) review of plans and bid documents; 

and participate in final plan review. 

i) Final Plans and Bid Documents 

i) Deliverables:  Official Engineer’s Estimate of Cost, Final bid documents, 

two (2) full size plan sets and bid documents, printable pdf file, and 

AutoCAD file.  Cost of reproducing bid documents for bidders may be 

recovered through fee paid by plan holders.  Engineer to review bids received 

and provide letter recommending award of bid.  

ii) City: provide timely (10 working days) review of plans and bid documents; 

and participate in final plan review. 

3)  Bid Solicitation Phase: 

a) Cost of reproducing bid documents for bidders may be recovered through fee 

paid by plan holders. 

b) Field questions from bidders 

c) Pre-bid Meeting: City will facilitate meeting room, Engineer to attend, provide 

agenda, compile and distribute attendance and meeting notes. 

d) Prepare and distribute any necessary addenda to bid documents.   

e) Engineer to review bids received and provide letter recommending award of bid.  

f) Attend City Commission Meeting for Award of Bid. 

44



 12 

 

4)  Construction Engineering Phase: 

a) Prepare 4 sets of Contract Documents for Execution 

b) Provide up to 6 sets of “For Construction” Plans and Specs: 2 for the City and 4 

for the Contractor. 

c) Review and approve submittals 

d) Field questions from contractor 

e) Pre-Construction Meeting: City will facilitate meeting room, Engineer to attend, 

provide agenda, compile and distribute attendance and meeting notes. 

f) Public Information Meeting: City will facilitate this meeting.  Engineer and 

Contractor will be expected to attend the meeting and field questions.  No 

deliverables for this meeting will be required. 

g) City intends to inspect the project in-house.  Any Construction Phase 

Engineering beyond the above listed services would be additional work and paid 

at the engineer’s typical hourly rate or under separate contract. 

5)  Miscellaneous:   

h) Provide any other incidental services not mentioned above which would typically 

be required for a project of this type.  When preparing the fee proposal for 

professional engineering services, the engineer should identify any obvious 

omission from this scope of services, which would be necessary to complete the 

project as intended. 

i) No additional Public or City Commission Meetings, beyond those listed above, 

are anticipated. 

 

 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

TO BE PROVIDED BY THE CITY 

 

The CITY will furnish, as required for the PROJECT and not at the expense of the 
CONSULTANT, the following items: 

 

1) Furnish City utility information including size and locations in vicinity of project. 

2) Provide access to previous engineering studies relevant to the project. 

3) Furnish existing known right-of-way and easement data. 

4) Right-of-way and Easements Acquisition if necessary. 

5) Provide timely review and comment or direction to engineer’s submittals. 

6) Provide facilities for all scheduled meetings. 

45



 13 

Exhibit C                 

PROPOSAL 

COH PROJECT NO. 2013-22 

13
th

 Street Improvement – Main to Milner 

 

1. The undersigned declares he/she has examined the Request for Proposals and all 

attached documents, has examined the site of work, and has determined for 

himself/herself the conditions affecting the work.  The Consultant hereby proposes to 

do the work called for in the RFP and attached documents at the following not-to-

exceed prices: 

2. The undersigned, in compliance with your Request for Proposals (RFP), dated May 12, 2014, 

hereby proposes to do the work called for in said RFP at the following lump sum price: 
 

 

   Total Dollars ($_____  ______) 

 

3. The Undersigned further agrees that if the proposal is accepted by the City, he/she will 

commence work within the timeframe set out in Section 13 - Projected Schedule of Events 

and shall complete the work as specified within the RFP and attached Exhibits; and that 

he/she shall pay liquidated damages in the amount of Fifty Dollars ($50) for each calendar 

day, that the work remains uncompleted after expiration of Contract time.   
 

Required Documents Attached            (Yes / No) 

 Client References -         

 Contract Terms and Conditions – (Draft Engineering Service Agreement)      

 Standard Hourly Rate Schedule       

 Responses to Functional Requirements – (if any)      

 Acknowledgement of Addenda    ________  

 (If Any  # ____, # ____, # ____) 

 

Dated this _____day of ______________________, 2014. 

Signature of Proposer 

 

 By       

 

 Name       

 

 Title       

 

 Name of Firm      

46



 14 

Exhibit D 

 

(insert Geotechnical Report) 

47



Reliable  Responsive  Convenient  Innovative 1 
 

Geotechnical Engineering Report 
Proposed 13th Street Improvements 

Between Main Street and Milner Street 
Hays, Kansas 

March 11, 2014 
Project No. C6145606 

 
Prepared for: 

Driggs Design Group 
Manhattan, Kansas 

 
 

Prepared by: 

Terracon Consultants, Inc. 
Manhattan, Kansas 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

48

johnbraun
Text Box
Report content removed from Agenda Packet to conserve resources.Full Report available from Public Works Department Upon Request.John Braun



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



  Commission Work Session Agenda 
Memo  

 
From:  Paul Briseno, Assistant City Manager 
 
Work Session: July 3, 2014 
 
Subject: Addendum to the FOP Union Contract 
 
Person(s)  Paul Briseno, Assistant City Manager 
Responsible: Toby Dougherty, City Manager 
 

Summary 
The City of Hays and the Fraternal Order of Police Lodge 48 Inc. have an agreement for 
fiscal year 2015 Wages, and Administration of the Pay Plan.  The agreement states the 
City will provide members of the FOP bargaining unit with a one-time 2% bonus, paid 
bi-weekly beginning with the first payroll in 2015 and ending with the last payroll in 
2015.  The City will continue the current pay ranges. 
 
Staff recommends approval of the addendum.   
 

Background  
The FOP contract contains annual openers for Section 10 Health Insurance, if conditions 
are met, and Section 16 Wages and Administration of the Pay Plan.  The threshold to 
open health insurance was not met. 
 

Discussion 
The City and FOP began the meet and confer process March of 2014 to discuss the 
openers for the 2015 contract.  Four meetings were held.  Both parties tentatively agree to 
the attached proposal.  

 

Legal Consideration 
There are no known legal obstacles to proceeding as recommended by City Staff. 
 

Financial Consideration 
The City of Hays will budget a one-time 2% bonus, paid bi-weekly beginning with the 
first payroll in 2015 and ending with the last payroll in 2015.  The City will continue the 
current pay ranges. 
 

Options 
The City Commission has the following options; 

65



1.   Adopt the agreement between the City of Hays and the FOP,   
      Fraternal Order of Police Lodge 48 Inc. 
2. Reject the agreement between the City of Hays and the FOP, Fraternal Order 

of Police Lodge 48 Inc. and give staff further direction 
3. Take no action 

 

Recommendation 
Staff recommends the agreed upon language for the 2015 addendum between the City of 
Hays and FOP Fraternal Order of Police Lodge 48 Inc. 
 

Action Requested 
Staff requests that the Hays City Commission authorize the Mayor, City Manager, and 
Police Chief to sign the 2015 Addendum to the 2013 thru 2015 Union Contract. 

 
Supporting Documentation 

Addendum to Agreement between the City of Hays and the FOP 
 

 

 

66



ADDENDUM TO AGREEMENT 
 

BETWEEN 
 

CITY OF HAYS 
AND 

FRATERNAL ORDER OF POLICE LODGE 48 Inc. 
 

 
 This addendum to agreement executed on this 26th day of June, 2014, between 
the City of Hays, Kansas, hereinafter referred to as the “City”, and Fraternal Order of 
Police Lodge 48 Inc., hereinafter referred to as the “FOP”, is intended to be attached to 
and made a part of the existing Memorandum of Agreement between the City and the 
FOP that expires December 31, 2015.  This addendum is in effect from January 1, 2015 
through December 31, 2015.  All portions of this agreement are incorporated therein by 
reference unless specifically altered or changed by the provisions of this Addendum.   
 
 
Section16. WAGES / ADMINISTRATION OF THE PAY PLAN 
 
For fiscal year 2015 the City agrees to provide all covered employees of the FOP 
bargaining union with a one-time 2% bonus, paid bi-weekly beginning with the first 
payroll in 2015 and ending with the last payroll in 2015. The City will continue the 
current pay ranges. 
 
 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and the FOP have hereunto set their hand this 

10th day of July, 2014. 

 
 
FOR THE FOP     FOR THE CITY 
 
_____________________________  ______________________________ 
President       Mayor 
 
 
_____________________________  ______________________________ 
Business Representative    City Manager 
 
 
_____________________________  ______________________________ 
Business Representative    Chief of Police 
 

67



 

68



 

 

Memo 
To: City Commission  

From: Toby Dougherty, City Manager 

Date: 6-27-14 

Re:  Draining of Pools and Hot Tubs into Alleys  

Attached to this memo you will find a redlined version of Section 65 of the Hays Municipal Code.  
The redlined changes to this section would accomplish two things.  Chapter 65-69 would be 
amended to exempt water being drained from swimming pools and hot tubs from the City’s 
current prohibition on allowing substantial amounts of water to escape or drain from private 
property.  As part of routine maintenance, it is necessary to periodically drain swimming pools and 
hot tubs, so this modification would allow that to happen.  Section 65-70 has been modified to 
make it unlawful for any person to drain a swimming pool or hot tub onto an unpaved alley or right-
of-way.  The modification imposes a fine, which has been left blank, making it a ticket-worthy 
offense.  The fine section has specifically been left blank at the request of the Commission.   
 
aw 

City of Hays 
Office of the City Manager 

69



ORDINANCE NO. ___________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 65 OF THE CITY 
OF HAYS, KANSAS, MUNICIPAL CODE, BY MODIFYING 
ARTICLE III, DIVISION 1, SECTION 65-69, SUBSECTION 65-
69(c) REGARDING WATER ALLOTMENT AND 
CONSERVATION AND BY MODIFYING ARTICLE III, 
DIVISION 1, SECTION 65-70, REGARDING ESCAPE OR 
DRAINING OF WATER FROM PRIVATE PROPERTY. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF HAYS, KANSAS: 
 
Section 1. Chapter 65, Article III, Division 1, Section 65-69, Subsection 65-69(c) of the City of 

Hays, Kansas Municipal Code is hereby amended as follows: 
 

CHAPTER 65 
 

UTILITIES 
 

ARTICLE III. WATER SERVICE SYSTEM 
 

DIVISION 1.  GENERALLY 
 

Sec. 65-69. Water allotment and conservation. 
 

(c) Regulations.  

(1) The use of water for the washing down of sidewalks, walkways, driveways, 
parking lots, gas station aprons, and all other hard-surfaced areas, and other similar practices, 
shall be prohibited; provided that upon application, a special permit to allow such usage may 
be granted by the city clerk, if sufficient documentation and need, such as unreasonable 
hazard to public safety, can be shown.  

(2) The escape or loss of water through breaks or leaks within the water user's 
plumbing or distribution system for any substantial period of time shall be prohibited, it 
being presumed that a period of eight hours after the water user discovers or should have 
discovered such leak or break is a substantial period of time.  

(3) Outdoor watering, including, but not limited to, the irrigation of lawns, 
shrubs, flowers, trees, gardens and other outdoor vegetation, with potable water, shall be 
prohibited between the hours of 12:00 noon and 7:00 p.m., between June 1 and September 
30, inclusive. Upon application and good cause shown, a special permit may be issued by the 
city to allow watering newly seeded lawns between said hours and said dates, with the terms 
and conditions of said permit to be established by the city, taking into account the type of 
grass and vegetation to be planted and watered so as to maximize the benefit of the use of 
potable water for said purpose, minimizing the waste of water and encouraging the water 

70



ORDINANCE NO. _________ 
Page 2 
 

user to establish the grass and other vegetation at the optimum time and season. Said permit 
shall be valid for a maximum of ten days, shall restrict and regulate watering consistent with 
all ordinances and regulations, and shall be posted prominently at the site of the planting so 
that law enforcement and the public can easily view the permit. The city shall establish fees 
for said permits, in such a manner as to encourage the planting of low-water-use grass and 
vegetation and shall establish a system and program to purchase warm season, low-water-use 
seed and plants to give to applicants who are converting higher water-use grass and 
vegetation to lower water-use grass and vegetation. The city manager or his designee shall 
inform the city commission, as needed, of all current provisions of said permits, setting out 
all pertinent requirements and regulations, fees, financial incentives, and other information.  

(4) No water user shall allow substantial amounts of water to escape or drain 
from private property onto public property, including, but not limited to, public sidewalks, 
rights-of-way, streets, unpaved alleys, and highways; provided that the term "substantial" 
shall mean an amount sufficient to cause a discernible flow of water reaching the street, 
gutter or other drainage system. For purposes of this section, it shall be conclusively 
presumed that the resident of property from which water escapes or drains knows of such 
escape or draining. However, the escape of water from private property due to washing of 
vehicles shall not be construed as substantial; provided, the user of the water has not allowed 
water to flow from a hose or open tap when not directly being used to wash down the 
vehicle.  

(5) Water users are expressly permitted to allow substantial amounts of water to 
drain from swimming pools or hot tubs located on private property; provided that such water 
is directed into storm sewers, sanitary sewers and impervious curb frontage along the 
property.  Such water shall not be permitted to escape or drain onto unpaved alleys or rights-
of-way.   

 

Section 2. Chapter 65, Article III, Division 1, Section 65-70 of the City of Hays, Kansas 
Municipal Code is hereby amended as follows: 

 
CHAPTER 65 

 
UTILITIES 

 
ARTICLE III. WATER SERVICE SYSTEM 

 
DIVISION 1.  GENERALLY 

 
Sec. 65-70. Escape or draining of water from private property prohibited; penalty. 

 

71



ORDINANCE NO. _________ 
Page 3 
 

(a) (1) It is unlawful for any person to allow substantial amounts of water to escape 
and/or drain from private property onto public property, including, but not limited to, public 
sidewalks, rights-of-way, streets, unpaved alleys, and highways; provided that the term 
"substantial" shall mean an amount sufficient to cause a discernible flow of water reaching 
the street, gutter, or other drainage system.  

(b2) For purposes of this section, it shall be presumed that the resident of the 
private property from which water escapes or drains knows of such escape or draining.  

(c3) Any person accused of a violation of this section shall be charged in the 
municipal court of the city and shall, upon conviction of such violation, for the first 
conviction, not be fined but shall receive a warning as to the effect of subsequent 
convictions, for a second conviction, not less than $0.00 nor more than $25.00, and for a 
third or subsequent conviction, not less than $25.00 nor more than $50.00.  

(b) (1) It is unlawful for any person to allow substantial amounts of water to escape 
and/or drain from a swimming pool or hot tub on private property onto unpaved alleys or 
rights-of-way; provided that the term “substantial” shall mean an amount sufficient to cause 
a discernible flow of water reaching the street, gutter or other drainage system or the 
discernible saturation of the unpaved alley or right-of-way.   

 (2) For purposes of this section, it shall be presumed that the resident of the 
private property from which water escapes or drains from a swimming pool or hot tub knows 
of such escape or draining.   

 (3) Any person accused of a violation of this section shall be charged in the 
municipal court of the city and shall, upon conviction of such violation, be fined 
____________.   

(cd) The penalties provided for in subsection (c) of this section shall be in addition to any 
penalties provided for in Section 65-69.  

 
Section 3. The ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage and 

publication in the Hays Daily News, the official city newspaper. 
 

PASSED by the Commission on ____________ __, 2014. 
 
 
 

______________________________ 
HENRY SCHWALLER, IV 
Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 

72



ORDINANCE NO. _________ 
Page 4 
 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
BRENDA KITCHEN 
City Clerk 
 
(SEAL)  

73


	7-3-14 Work Session Memo
	7-3-14 Work Session Agenda
	6-19-14 Work Session Notes
	13th Street (Main to Milner) - Design Agreement
	Addendum to the FOP Contract
	Draining of Pools and Hot Tubs into Alleys



